
MINUTES OF MEETING 
LAKESIDE PLANTATION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Lakeside Plantation Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, August 21, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. at the Lakeside 

Plantation Clubhouse, 2200 Plantation Boulevard, North Port, Florida. 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

Alan (Bud) Sabol 
Camille Stephens 
Joe Szewczyk 
Pina Chichelli 
Rena Koontz 

Also present were: 

George Flint 
Sarah Sandy 
Brent Burford 
Nathan Trates 
Anthony Sampiere 
Residents 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Chairman 
Vice Chair 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

District Manager 
District Counsel 
District Engineer 
Facilities Manager 
Relion Solutions 

Roll Call 

Mr. Flint called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and called the roll. All Supervisors were 

present. The pledge of allegiance was recited at the Audit Committee meeting. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments on Specific Items on 
the Agenda (Speakers will fill out a card 

and submit it to the District Manager prior 

to beginning of the meeting) 

Mr. Flint: We have a separate public hearing for the budget so if you have any comments 

or questions on the budget, we would hold those until the public hearing. If it's a comment on 

something not on the agenda, we have general comments later in the meeting. At this point, are 

there any comments on agenda items other than the budget? Hearing none, 
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THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS District Engineer's Report 

A. Discussion of Yard Drain Design and License Agreement 

Mr. Flint: I provided a draft resolution, which includes a draft application, license 

agreement and diagram with the specifications. 

Ms. Sandy: The resolution you have m front of you would approve the form of 

application that is attached to it, as well as the form of license. These are the documents we 

prepared to address the situation that the District was approached about, which is if a resident 

wanted to install a drain from the house gutter, you can see this on the sketch, all the way under 

the ground to the lake bank. Brent, please correct me if I'm wrong, I should be leaving the 

technical specifications to Brent, but the way the process would work is a homeowner would fill 

out this application, submit it to the District Manager, to George's office, they would review the 

application and determine if it meets the basic requirements and then approve or deny it. How we 

thought the process would work is at that point they would then engage a contractor who would 

do the installation based on the specifications that are in the drawing. There is one complication 

that Brent brought up more recently that I will let him address. 

Mr. Burford: We are doing lake bank restorations. Geotubes were placed in certain 

locations to provide fabric to or non-woven to sand to shorten lake bank erosion areas. Those 

could be an issue if a homeowner hires a contractor to install yard drains. We can't allow them to 

move the material out of the geotubes. If you are excavating underneath the geotube, you need a 

minimum of two layers. These excavations would go underneath it, plus you are helping the 

water at the same time. So, we just need consideration of the geotubes. 

Mr. Flint: Would you recommend situations where we denied the application for the yard 

drain? 

Mr. Burford: Ifwe can get that water in those rear lots towards the lake without having to 

go over the left bank, the better off they are. I suggest that someone understands what they are 

doing and that they are qualified to handle it. Then again, we have some liability, I guess. 

Ms. Sandy: The license that would have to be executed in conjunction with getting 

approval for this, would cover the liability in the sense if there was damage to the geotube or 

damage to the pond bank, the homeowner would be responsible for that damage. It's more of a 

logistical question of making sure the homeowner is aware on the front end that there is a 
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geotube there and their contractor would know that it's there and how that needs to be addressed. 

So, I don't know whether they need a separate sketch. 

Mr. Burford: There is a map showing where repairs are being made, but we need to make 

sure that we get a map showing the locations of all the geotubes. In prior work, the locations 

were identified on the map. So, when the application comes in, the locations will be included 

where we have geotubes so homeowners would be aware of it. 

Mr. Szewczyk: What would your recommendation be, if you are a contractor and you 

have geotubes there? Would your recommendation be to go under it? 

Mr. Burford: Yes. I would not allow the contractor to cut the geotube. That would be our 

recommendation. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Can we somehow include that language in this paperwork that if they are 

dealing with a geotube, they have to go under? 

Ms. Sandy: We can. I think the additional cost there is for Brent to prepare a map 

showing where the current geotubes are. That's something that we can check on when the 

application is filled out. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Alright. 

Ms. Stephens: The homeowner would be responsible for that cost? 

Mr. Flint: Not for the additional map. 

Ms. Sandy: That's something we would have to prepare right now. It's not something on 

a per resident basis. 

Ms. Stephens: Right. 

Ms. Sandy: The second item that we need to resolve is we talked previously about 

passing the cost to the homeowner or setting a fee for staff cost to prepare the documents, but 

what about the upfront cost of Brent preparing the map? 

Mr. Sabol: So we have to decide if there's a fee for the application or not. 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. In order to set a fee, we must hold a public hearing. 

Mr. Flint: I think you talked about this before. We discussed if we are going to collect 

actual costs, we don't need to have a rate hearing, but if we are going to set a fixed fee, then we 

need to have a rate hearing. I would suggest a fixed fee. I don't know that we want to be 

calculating different costs every time we process an application. I think you indicated that you 

are going to be bringing towards some rule changes as a result of the legislative session. We 
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could have a rate hearing in conjunction with the rule hearing. I have had some other Districts 

adopt interim rates until they amend their rules. So maybe one option is to adopt an interim rate 

while you are going through the rulemaking. We did that in Arlington Ridge with Jennifer 

Kilinski and Lindsay. 

Ms. Sandy: I think the risk is if someone challenges it as an improper fee, but if we are 

moving forward with adopting the rate at a future time, I think that risk is minimal. The worst

case scenario is that you hold off approving the application until the rates are in place. 

Mr. Sabol: Do we really need a fee? 

Ms. Koontz: I think we should cover administrative costs. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I agree. 

Mr. Flint: We estimated $175, but when you think about putting in a yard drain, paying 

$175 for an application fee seems like a lot of money, but the reality of it is it must be reviewed 

by the attorney and the engineer has to inspect it on the back end. There are real costs associated 

with doing that. We can schedule the inspections in conjunction with Board Meetings to save 

some of those expenses, but there will be some expenses to the District. We estimated $17 5 on 

average. 

Mr. Sabol: I don't think you should charge a flat rate. I think we should wait until the 

bills come in to see what the engineer and attorneys charge. 

Ms. Koontz: I disagree. I believe that we should charge a flat rate. 

Ms. Stephens: Is this because of the house in the villas? 

Mr. Flint: It could be anyone else who puts a yard drain in. I think that one instance 

probably raised the issue. It is a valid concern because if they are not installed correctly, it 

actually exacerbates the issue. 

Ms. Stephens: I agree with Rena. It should be a flat fee. Whatever that is. 

Mr. Flint: The cost of the mapping of the geotube is a tool that can probably be 

incorporated in the map we already have with the lakes. It's probably a tool that you can use for 

things other than this. So, whether you need to recover the expense as part of this or absorb it in 

your general engineering fees, as we do lake restoration in the future, we are going to want to 

know where we have geotubes and where we don't. That map may have some other uses. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Let's not forget the fact that someone is putting something in a drain in an 

area that doesn't have a geotube. They are actually doing us a favor. 
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Mr. Flint: Correct. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Because that's going to lessen the chance of erosion at that spot for which 

we have to go in with geotubes sometime later and have a more expensive solution. So, I agree 

that we need to recover some costs, but in the long run, it is to our benefit. 

Ms. Sandy: We can advertise a range so that way if we can determine further down the 

road that its actually costing the District less, we can adjust it, if it costs more as well. 

Mr. Flint: If you did a range you would have flexibility. 

Ms. Sandy: Is there a consensus on what that range would be as part of the rate hearing? 

Mr. Szewczyk: We talked about $150, but I think that should be the top side of what the 

charge is. 

Mr. Flint: You can do a range expanding either side of that and then set something in the 

middle if you wanted to. So, if you went from $100 to $200 or $125 to $225 and you ended up 

picking $17 5 or $ 15 0, you can do that, but then later on you could increase it if you need to or 

decrease it. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I like $100to $200. That's a nice round number 

Ms. Stephens: You have flexibility to change it. Right? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. 

Ms. Sandy: When is the next meeting? 

Mr. Flint: It will have to be in October. You are going to bring the revised rules back, 

aren't you? 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. 

Mr. Flint: So we'll do it the third Wednesday in November. 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. If we are trying to consolidate advertising for both the revised Rules of 

Procedure as well as this rate hearing, November would be the best. Does that sound good for the 

Board? 

Mr. Szewczyk: That sounds fine. 

Mr. Flint: So it would be November 20, which is a week before Thanksgiving. 

Ms. Sandy: This resolution does a couple things. First it approves a form of the 

application, license as well as authorizes District Staff to process it. Like we talked about, 

George's office would receive the application. After it was installed, Brent would inspect it. If 

there's anything that doesn't line up with the sketch, there would have to be changes and he 
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would do a re-inspection. We tried to set up the license so there would not be much work for us, 

as District Counsel, on the back end. We would just have to make sure that it matches the public 

records in terms of the deed before recording it. The resolution provides authority to the Chair to 

execute that license so we can keep proceeding in between District meetings, and bring the 

license back for ratification at the next meeting. Then it sets the rulemaking hearing for that rate 

fee. Because we are adopting the application and license in substantial form, we can make that 

modification to reference the geotube map, once it is created and determine whether or not we 

need a separate sketch. So, if the Board is good with all of that, then we need a motion to adopt 

Resolution 2019-06. 

Ms. Koontz: Are we changing the date of adoption? 

Ms. Sandy: Correct. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Mr. Sabol with all in 
favor Resolution 2019-06 approving the form of application and 
License Agreement for the Yard Drain, and authorizing the 
Chairman to execute the same, was approved. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Unimished Business Items 

A. Discussion of Tennis Court Drainage Repair 

Mr. Flint: Brent was going to discuss the tennis court drainage issue. 

Mr. Burford: Yes. At the last meeting, the Board discussed the drainage on the tennis 

courts. I prepared a spreadsheet with two options; one with trench drains and one with piping to 

stop the drainage between the two tennis courts. We tried to find some cheaper alternatives. I 

took a picture of some drains to show you that we did have slow drainage from the tennis courts 

to a drainage ditch that runs east/west at the back of the tennis court. So yesterday, I was looking 

at putting a swale to carry that water all the way to the ditch or possibly creating a retention area. 

It was previously discussed about putting rocks around that panel to build up that area. What is 

on the drawing is putting a concrete pad around the electrical panel. It would be an extension of 

the existing concrete that is in between the two tennis courts. Another option is to pour concrete 

between the tennis courts to create a flow line enabling water across that area. I provided a plan 

that has a 10' by 15' concrete pad around the electrical panels. Right now, that concrete is .5%, 

which carries the water to the south/southeast. What I'm proposing is that the 10' by 25' 

concrete pad would be set in a 1 % mixture to make sure the water gets off of there. It would 
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require very little grading on the actual grass area in the back. That would keep the area around 

the concrete nice and dry. It will follow the same pattern we have in position today. We are 

probably talking about 2 to 5 yards of concrete. We will find a local contractor. I could see it at 

the $5,000 level on the top end, possibly. 

Mr. Flint: Are you suggesting that once the concrete is poured that we just let it sheet 

flow? 

Mr. Burford: Correct. 

Mr. Flint: And not put it in a box and pipe it or anything like that? 

Mr. Burford: It will be at the far end down there. The concrete in between the tennis 

courts has a small invert that takes water off of our tennis courts and sends everything to the 

southeast. We will do the same thing on the pad around the electrical pad to maintain that invert 

and it will shoot the water out through the back. There will be good draining right around the 

concrete pad, which will flow onto the swales on the backside. 

Mr. Flint: Okay. 

Mr. Sabol: If you do it that way, isn't that going to create a problem that is beyond that 

electrical box? Where is that water going to go? It has to go somewhere. 

Mr. Burford: It needs a swale to carry water to the lake. 

Mr. Sabol: So it will still be a dry area there, the way you are proposing it? The water is 

going to come out here so it has to go somewhere. 

Mr. Burford: That's why I'm showing the grades. 

Mr. Flint: The grade is actually pitched based on those numbers. 

Mr. Burford: The grade is on the front sheet. After moving to the south/southeast, the 

numbers were dropping down. That's where the water is going to flow. We use the lowest point 

on the map and there's actually a swale. On the bottom of the page is the swale, which will get 

water onto the clay. It will have a good time to pick up any of that sediment. The plant material 

comes off of the tennis courts and carried that all the way down to the lake. 

Ms. Koontz: So the concrete pad essentially acts as a dam to keep the water away from 

it? 

Mr. Burford: No ma'am, it's just how the water flowed through that area. I don't want 

water near the electrical panel. It will accumulate and just pond up underneath it. We want to 

have sheet flow through there. 
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Mr. Flint: So he's proposing to extend the existing concrete and pour a slab around that 

panel. That slab is going to be pitched and based on the elevations with some minor grading, it 

will carry the water down to that swale. Based on these numbers, it should flow. 

Mr. Sabol: What happens ifwe have electrical problems and it has to be dug up? 

Mr. Flint: They break it up. We pour concrete on electrical panels all the time. 

Mr. Burford: If you wanted to, you can probably think ahead and maybe set in a couple 

of spare conduits so if you needed another conduit any other time, it's already there. 

Ms. Stephens: Could you explain to me visually what you are planning to do? 

Mr. Burford: All we want to do is expand the concrete to allow the water to spray past the 

panel. Right now, all of this water and this mud is triangulating down that panel. 

Ms. Stephens: I know. 

Mr. Burford: There has been rock salt in there and the plate fills up and it gets slick. It's a 

mess. I think if we can get the water past it, we would be in good shape. 

about. 

Mr. Sabol: What about running a pipe? 

Mr. Burford: I'm trying to cut costs for you. 

Ms. Stephens: If we are going to do it, it has to be done. This is electricity we are talking 

Mr. Burford: I understand. 

Mr. Flint: lfhe shot elevations and the ground pitches up, then the water is going to run. 

Ms. Koontz: The water is still running. 

Mr. Burford: Its ponding. 

Ms. Koontz: I understand that, but we aren't eliminating the water. We are just making 

the water move faster past the panel. Right? 

Mr. Flint: Correct. 

Ms. Koontz: It's not going to settle there. 

Mr. Burford: That's correct. 

Ms. Koontz: We are going to slope it so that the water runs off. 

Mr. Burford: The ground is naturally slopped so it should carry on to the swale and into 

the plate. 

Mr. Sabol: So when you receive hard rains, it will accumulate or get muddy, but it could 

drain off. 
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Mr. Burford: It may be muddy, but it's going to be out past your electrical panel. 

Mr. Flint: You could always do that as a Phase 2. If we pour the concrete and find that 

it's not draining quickly enough, you could always put a box in there later, like a yard drain. 

Mr. Burford: We could add another extension to it. Four feet is just a big enough area to 

put a yard drain on the small end of that pipe. 

Mr. Sabol: Whatever clay comes off of that tennis court is excess clay. 

Mr. Burford: Correct. You don't know when they had clay coming off of it, but you can 

pick it up from the backside of that area. That can be maintained, just like you mow the grass. 

It's just another maintenance item so that water would not be all around that electrical panel. It 

would be pushed on past it. 

Mr. Sabol: You are proposing this at a much less cost? 

Mr. Burford: Yes. That's like a quarter piece of sidewalk. 

Ms. Stephens: What is the cost? 

Mr. Burford: Just off the top of my head, I couldn't see it costing much more than 

$5,000. Probably not even that. It's like what a small section of sidewalk costs. 

Mr. Szewczyk: The other option we were talking about is pouring an entire sidewalk and 

a drain with gravel, but that's a lot more extensive than pouring a pad and letting the water flow. 

Mr. Burford: Correct. 

Mr. Flint: This cost estimate is in excess of $30,000. 

Mr. Sabol: One was $31,000 and one was $43,000. 

Mr. Burford: That was when they were installing trench drains and catch basins. It's a 

"Do what you need to do right now." At some point in time, in between those tennis courts, you 

can spend the money to get the drainage corrected. 

Mr. Sabol: Could you give us an estimate? 

Mr. Burford: I will look into it. I was just thinking that we were going to be discussing it 

tonight and I misunderstood some of the direction from the last meeting. We just discussed this 

quickly yesterday and today. I think this will address your needs. Like I said, if we have some 

issues with it, just like George mentioned, we can extend that concrete, put a little drain in there 

and pipe it out. 

Mr. Sabol: So you will come back at the next meeting with something? 

Mr. Burford: We will have something put together. 
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Mr. Sabol: Okay. 

Mr. Flint: All we have to do is to pour a concrete pad, right? He just has to have it sloped 

correctly and that's the only thing. 

Mr. Burford: We could lay it out in just a matter of hours. 

Mr. Flint: So if the Board wants to move forward with it, you could probably approve a 

not-to-exceed of $5,000. We use Bradley Ray Concrete for small projects. We could probably 

get a quite from him and get it done. 

Mr. Burford: That's the price on the high end of it. 

Mr. Sabol: Brent, can you cut the area where the electrical box is? Because it is higher. 

Mr. Burford: Do you see numbers there? 

Mr. Sabol: Yes. 

Mr. Burford: Water is flowing this way and it's going to continue to flow. 

Mr. Sabol: Right now, the water is accumulating. 

Mr. Burford: I looked at it, but it could be because of this. I'm not going to be able to 

eliminate that. I was looking at the electrical panel. That's a different area. 

Mr. Sabol: Is there a way that you can put a cut here to drain that water and make sure 

that water leaves? That is where the water accumulates right now. 

Mr. Flint: They could maybe notch it. 

Mr. Burford: If you have a contractor that you are working with, they can probably get 

them to make cuts. 

Mr. Sabol: Someone like Bradley Ray Concrete? 

Mr. Burford: Yes. I think that will solve your problem. 

Ms. Koontz: There are an awful lot of "maybes, probablys and mights." This sounds like 

one of the fixes that the CDD makes. I'm concerned that a year from now or two years from now 

it comes back to bite us in the butt because it wasn't done right in the first place. To me, that 

doesn't seem like the right answer. I will defer to this Board if everyone says, "Rena, it is the 

answer, " but it doesn't feel right. 

Mr. Sabol: You are talking about $30,000 to $35,000 extra to do that. At a later date, we 

can always change that. 
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Ms. Koontz: That is what we always do. We do something and then at a later date its 

wrong and we go back and fix it and then w� don't fix it right. Then sometime after that, we are 

fixing it a third time and everyone is complaining about why we didn't do it right the first time. 

Ms. Stephens: That's 100% right. That's why I had you come here to look at the cracks. I 

understand what Joe said. $30,000 as opposed to $5,000 is just putting a band-aid on a heart 

attack. If we are going to do anything, either we do it all or do nothing. What's the point? 

Mr. Szewczyk: So you are recommending that because of these cracks, we replace the 

entire sidewalk between the tennis courts? 

Ms. Stephens: Yes. Have you looked at it? It's a big mess back there. It' s a disgrace. 

Mr. Sabol: That will tell you something because we had a contractor look at everything 

and he pulled the proposal. What he was doing was basically designing it like you are speaking 

of, but would not guarantee it. 

Ms. Stephens: He was going to put rocks there. 

Mr. Sabol: He said it would work maybe 90% of the time, but he withdrew his proposal. 

This is more or less what you are proposing . .He has a point. It may not work. In a perfect world, 

we always hope it is going to work, but as soon as we have a horrible rain, we will have another 

problem. 

Mr. Sabol: So if we don't do that, Brent, do we have to go back to that $3 1 ,000? 

Mr. Burford: One of the options that I thought about for that electrical panel was to cut in 

a swale that carries water back to the existing swale that takes the water off the property. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So basically re-grading. 

Mr. Burford: Yes. Re-grading a large area. Whereas, if it's just a problem with standing 

water around an electrical panel, which was originally proposed, this will take care of that water 

standing around the electrical panel. However, 4 inches of rain in the afternoon is not keeping 

things dry. As far as normal seasonal rains, the water runs and dries off. This will keep the water 

from the pond away the electrical panel. 

Mr. Sabol: Okay, so you are talking about if we accept that proposal, say for $5,000, 

what would it cost to grade that on a 4 or 5-inch slope, maybe 25 to 30 feet out? 

Mr. Burford: I don't think we need to get 25 to 30 feet out. If you want to look at it, I 'll 

shoot some tattered grains in that area so you can see how they spread that out through there. I 

think we have the ability to get that water moving. If we get concrete in there and I put in a 1 % 
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slope verses a 25% slope, if the water is hitting that concrete pad, it will drain off of it. There's 

maybe a little area right behind it, where rocks and plant material accumulated. Yes, it will have 

to be maintained on the backside of that concrete pad where it flows off into the grass. It will 

have to be maintained like grass. It has to get some maintenance. If its maintained and you keep 

the same slope, water will drain off of the concrete pad. 

Mr. Sabol: So we are looking at spending $31,000 to $32,000 versus $5,000 to correct it. 

Mr. Burford: I'm talking about the cracks in the concrete. To do that trench drain down 

the center like was proposed, it's just like you mentioned. If we are looking at keeping that 

electrical panel dry, the concrete pad will take care of it. 

Ms. Stephens: I know what it looks. like. I know that the palm was right there and I 

understand what Joe was talking about. I also agree with Rena. That was my thought from the 

get go. If we are going to do it, we should just do it right. 

Mr. Sabol: We have three things that are wrong out there. We have to get rid of the water, 

we have a possible electrical problem and we have to get rid of the clay. So, I think the $31 ,000 

to $32,000 sounds good and will probably fix it, but that's a lot of money. 

Ms. Stephens: George, do we have the money? 

Mr. Burford: One thing to keep in mind is what I proposed, which is putting a trench 

drain down that center, but there are still areas in there where you are going to have all of these 

cracks. So, it's not just replacing that concrete in the entire area between the tennis courts. They 

don't even have to put the trench drain in. So, if you want to redo that entire area between the 

tennis courts, you are looking at additional costs. 

Ms. Stephens: Why don't we have a drawing of how it should be, with everything in the 

perfect world, with little or no problems, what it looks like and how much it's going to cost. 

Does anyone agree or disagree? I know that Joe is still focusing on $5,000. 

Mr. Szewczyk: No I'm not. I'm listening to you. 

Ms. Stephens: I don't want to spend the money either, but you can't keep throwing 

money away and nothing is getting done right. 

Ms. Chichelli: I think there's a huge difference. I know that it looks like it's going to be a 

very small fix, but if he's the District Engineer and he's giving us the answers on how to move 

the water from the electrical box, this sounds good. 
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Ms. Stephens: I'm not going to disagree with you, but the District Engineer said the same 

thing about the playground. 

Mr. Flint: The District Engineer wasn't involved with the playground. I think the District 

Engineer came up with a solution that worked on addressing the issue. That's the same theory 

and techniques that he is applying here. 

Ms. Stephens: I wasn't blaming you. 

Mr. Sabol: They did a wonderful job on that playground and its completed. 

Ms. Stephens: Thank god. 

Mr. Sabol: You are going to have to pour a pad, but if you are going to put some more 

cuts in there or something to get rid of it, maybe we need another plan. I don't know if we need 

more cuts to get the water to that end. 

Mr. Burford: If you have extra money, you probably want to take care of that entire area, 

but you have concrete posts in there. I think if you understand that its more money to get the 

drainage in that entire area straightened out, you should address that entire area at the same time, 

your structures, tangles, whatever you need to solve the issue. I think what I proposed here is the 

cheapest method and it will keep the area dry around there. As far as the trench drain and the 

area from the tennis courts, they need to be looked at. 

Mr. Sabol: So do we want to vote on it? 

Mr. Szewczyk: This all started with ponding water. A General Contractor once told me 

when I was grading to just keep the water moving away from the structures. That is what he is 

proposing. I like the idea of putting a couple of conduits in there in case we need them in the 

future by digging up the concrete. I believe it fixes the issue. We don't want water ponding 

around our electrical panel. 

Mr. Sabol: Right, that's correct. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Is that sidewalk to a point where it just needs to be repaired? I don't think 

so, just the sidewalk in between. I pulled up the rugs in my house and there are cracks in the 

concrete. It settles and cracks. So, I don't feel like there's a need for us to be ripping up that 

whole thing and redoing it. 

Mr. Szewczyk MOVED to approve a not-to-exceed amount of 
$5,000 for Bradley Ray Concrete to pour a concrete slab at the 
tennis courts and Ms. Stephens seconded the motion. 
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Mr. Sabol: It is going to cost more than $5,000. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I 'm just going by what Brent said. 

Mr. Sabol: Okay. 

Lakeside Plantation CDD 

Mr. Burford: I can't see two yards of concrete costing more than $5,000. 

Mr. Sabol: I think that' s a good idea, Joe, but I would like to see an additional cut there to 

get rid of the water. Bradley Ray Concrete can do that for a reasonable cost. 

Ms. Stephens: I say make it an even $6,000 and be done with it. 

Ms. Chichelli: Will the person coming to do the job be supervised? 

Mr. Flint: We would like the motion to include the fact that the District Engineer would 

work with the contractor to make sure that the pad is properly pitched and specifications were 

followed. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I will add that to my motion. 

On VOICE VOTE with all in favor amending the prior motion to 
approve a not-to-exceed amount of $5,500 for Bradley Ray 
Concrete to pour a concrete pad at the tennis courts and 
authorization for the District Engineer to work with the contractor 
to ensure the concrete pad is properly pitched and specifications 
were followed, was approved. 

Mr. Flint: Is there anything from the District Engineer? 

Mr. Burford: I spoke with Cross Creek Environmental and he's expecting to start at any 

time. Possibly the end of this week or the first of next week. 

Mr. Sabol: I was wondering if they were going to start on the lakes next week. 

Mr. Burford: He is supposed to be here this week. As soon as he' s  onsite or know when 

he's coming onsite, he' s  going to get in touch with me. That's all I have. 

Mr. Sabol: Okay, but on something like this tennis court, the tennis people are going to 

be back here in a month or six weeks so it's important that we get it done. I would like to do it as 

soon as possible. 

Mr. Flint: Nathan, can you coordinate with Bradley Ray Construction? 

Mr. Trates: Yes. 
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there. 

Mr. Burford: If you give them my contact information and I'm onsite, we can take it from 

Mr. Flint: Sounds good. 

Mr. Burford: That's all I have. 

Mr. Burford left the meeting. 

Mr. Flint: If the Board approves, I would like to go out of order. 

• Amenity Manager's Report (Item 8C) 

Mr. Flint: Under Nathan's report, he has a proposal from a security company. We have a 

representative here from a security company. Is the Board amenable to moving this item? 

Mr. Sabol: That's fine. 

Ms. Stephens: Yes. 

Mr. Trates: I would like to introduce Anthony from Relion Solutions. He is going to talk 

about the quote he submitted to us for nighttime security. 

Mr. Sampiere: Hello everyone. I'm Anthony Sampiere from Relion Solutions. 

Mr. Flint: Nathan, why don't you explain what the proposed scope is and that you've 

gone out and attempted to get other proposals. 

Mr. Trates: We have been searching for an overnight security company for a few months 

now and received some other bids that have come in. Anthony reached out to me in the last few 

weeks to submit his quote for overnight security within Lakeside Plantation. The proposal is 

$17.50 an hour or $420 for 24 hours of security per week. Anthony was saying that the company 

is agile and can make adjustments since he is local. The proposal is in your agenda package. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So what you are offering is onsite security versus roving patrol. 

Mr. Sampiere: Someone to be onsite. I can offer patrol around the community as well. 

Mr. Flint: Would the rate be different for roving patrol or would it be the same rate? 

Mr. Sampiere: For a limited scale, no. Its included. 

Ms. Koontz: So when you are roving, you would drive to the single-family homes, the 

towns, the villas, all of Lakeside Plantation? 

Mr. Sampiere: The main roads. 
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Mr. Flint: The security that the CDD pays for is to provide security for the CDDs assets. 

With the exception of the monuments in the front or maybe The Arbors or the ponds, there may 

be some CDD assets that they could patrol. 

Ms. Sandy: I think Mike spoke about this last time. In terms of security issues, we have to 

be careful about what we talk about because security plans and details of security plans have to 

be discussed in a closed session. They are both exempt from public records and Sunshine Laws. 

So, when we get into specifics of routes, hours and things like that, if that's something the Board 

wants to discuss, then we can save that until the end of the meeting and have a closed session to 

discuss these items. 

Mr. Flint: My suggestion is to talk more in general terms, then set some broader 

parameters and let staff, maybe the Chair or a designated Board Member work out the specific 

days and hours so we are not disclosing any of that information at a public meeting. Someone 

could read to the minutes and say, "Oh, they are patrolling these nights and therefore, I ' ll break 

into the clubhouse on that night." 

Mr. Sabol: One reason I think this is important is because according to Nathan, there has 

been 57 incidents since last February that happened after hours. Keep that in mind as we discuss 

this. 

Ms. Stephens: Are you insinuating that we don't need the security? 

Mr. Sabol: We do need the security. 

Ms. Stephens: I just want to make sure. 

Mr. Sabol: We are not going to discuss the hours now. 

Ms. Sandy: We can say how many hours a week and things like that. 

Mr. Sabol: So we had discussed something about 24 hours a week. 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. I think that's included in each of the proposals. 

Mr. Sabol: Is that a minimum of what your company will do? 

Mr. Sampiere: Yes. I can go over it, but there will be a slight rate increase. 

Mr. Sabol: Okay. 

Mr. Flint: On an analyzed basis, that's $21 ,840 for 52 weeks at $420 per week. We 

budgeted $30,000 just as a placeholder. So, if you approve the proposed budget, you would be 

able to accommodate this number of hours. Let me back up for a minute. Why don't you tell us 

about your company and how many people you have? They all have to be certified and provide 
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what their certifications are and what other clients you have in the area, just so the Board gets a 

feel for your qualifications, if you wouldn't mind. 

Mr. Sampiere: Well, I started off in pool security when I was 19  years old. Since then, I 

have had many different posts, events, concerts, etc. Last year, I worked for the Florida 

Department of Corrections to get some exper_ience. While I was at the prison working there as an 

officer, I started my company Relion Solutions. Apparently, I haven't had too many events. I had 

one in October for the Farmer's market. I have about two employees and I'm hoping to grow. As 

I said, it's a fairly new company. 

Mr. Szewczyk: What kind of experience do your employees have? 

Mr. Sampiere: General security experience. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Can you define that? 

Mr. Sampiere: Mall security, parking lot patrols and things of that nature. 

Mr. Sabol: Do you carry any weapons? 

Mr. Sampiere: No. 

Mr. Flint: You don't want armed security. In this kind of environment, we typically see 

security services less as a militaristic type and more of a customer service type. Do you agree 

with that philosophy? 

Mr. Sampiere: Absolutely. 

Mr. Flint: Its interfacing with residents and also interfacing with non-residents that 

shouldn't be here. Are there any more questions? We can talk about this more under Nathan's 

report if you want to defer action on it until later in the meeting. 

Mr. Sabol: I think it's a good idea to discuss it some more because we are going to 

discuss the gates and so forth. 

Ms. Chichelli: You mentioned certification. How many hours do they have for training? 

Mr. Sampiere: The State of Florida requires 40 hours. Those are the minimum 

requirements. 

Ms. Stephens: Are they reliable? 

Mr. Sampiere: Yes. That's our name. 

Ms. Stephens: Years ago, I owned a security company when I lived in New York. We 

provided a lot of big time security. I just want to make sure. There are times when you think 

somebody is going to be there and they didn't show. 
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Mr. Sampiere: The company I was working with had employees like that. I brought it to 

their attention numerous times. It isn't fair to you and it isn't fair to us. 

Ms. Stephens: When you think somebody is supposed to be at their designated spot and 

they are not, then the owner of the company has to be there. 

Mr. Sampiere: I had to take some posts by myself. 

Mr. Sabol: I don't  have any more questions. 

Mr. Flint: Thank you for being here and Nathan will be in touch with you. 

Mr. Sampiere: I'd be happy to stay after to discuss. 

Mr. Flint: You don't need to. I think we can reach out to you after the meeting or 

tomorrow and let you know what the Board decided. We appreciate it. 

Mr. Sampiere: Thank you for your time. 

B. Consideration of Proposals for Access Control Points at Pool 

Mr. Flint: Nathan, do you want to present the proposals? 

Mr. Trates: Yes. For the access control system, there were two quotes that I was 

revisiting that were previously presented. One was for CIAccess for two pool gates. The price 

was $11,914.86, which included 1,800 entry fobs. It does not include bringing power to the 

gates, unfortunately. They said it would be extra or something that we would have to hire an 

electrician for. The second quote was from Action Security for $12,500 for four access points at 

two pool gates, the gym and library. I did reach out to them to see what the cost was without the 

gym and library and he said that the difference was $7,000 to $8,000. This also includes 300 

access cards for $1,425. You can see that it is a little more money for the access cards versus the 

fobs. Those were the quotes that we are revisiting for access control. 

Ms. Koontz: Does the second proposal include running electric lines? 

Mr. Trates: Yes, but it only includes 300 fobs. I believe the price for them was $4.25 per 

fob. So, it depends on how many you want to provide per household. 

Mr. Szewczyk: There's no reason to have more than one card per household. I don't 

know too many times when somebody comes up to the pool using the access points for the gym 

and the library. How would that work? Suppose I come up here with my wife and let's say that 

she goes to the gym and I go to the library. Once I'm in, do I have to clock out in order to go into 

another area? 
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Mr. Trates: They usually have an exit push button and that unlocks the 600-lb. maglock. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So I just leave as I wo_uld and just scan in to go to the next room. 

Mr. Trates: Correct. 

Mr. Flint: One way to possibly handle it is you can provide two fobs. It's really up to you 

on how you want to handle it. You can charge for every one of them or you can provide two at 

no cost and replacements or additional ones at a certain amount for "x" dollars. For example, you 

can say, "We will provide two per household and if you need more than two up to a maximum of 

four, you would pay $10," or whatever the fee is going to be. That's the way a lot of 

communities would handle it. Some will charge for all of them. Some will provide a certain 

number at no cost and above that, they have to pay a fee for each additional fob. In all 

communities for replacement fobs, if you damage or lose it, typically you are going to pay to 

replace it. 

Ms. Koontz: Couldn't we provide one per household and if they want more, they 

purchase the additional ones? 

Mr. Flint: Yes, if that's the policy the Board wants to make. I would put a limit on how 

many per household because you don't want them handing them out to all of their friends. So, 

you probably want to put a maximum on how many each household could have, but you can do 

that in the policy. 

Ms. Stephens: I think four is a good number. 

Mr. Szewczyk: For a maximum? 

Ms. Stephens: For a maximum. I'm going to go with two per household, but if you want, 

you can go with one provided for free and then having them pay for the second one with four 

maxima. I don't think you would need more than four. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I think we need to decide because it's going into the cost of each of these 

proposals. I think we need to decide what direction we want to go in. Do we want to give one for 

free or two for free and then charge $1 0? This way we can recoup the cost of the original ones if 

someone wants more than two. Nathan can turn around and say, "Okay, under this plan, we'll 

give two free ones and this is what the end cost is going to be to us." So, does that sound alright? 

Should we give one or two for free? 

Ms. Chichelli: One for free and then everyone can pay for another one. Joan, do you have 

a fob to get in or out of your pool? 
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A resident: We have a new system now. Every time somebody uses their key to get in, a 

buzzer goes off. 

Ms. Stephens: That's very sophisticated. 

A resident: People were climbing over the fence. They used to come in car loads. Now 

some Board Member comes and say, "Its after hours, please leave now." 

Mr. Szewczyk: How many cards are issued to you for free? 

A resident: I get one for free. 

Mr. Szewczyk: It sounds like providing one key is the direction we should go in. 

Mr. Sabol: Wait a minute. We have a decision to make here. Are we going to go with this 

type of security or are we going to go with a guard? If we go with a guard, we will not do any of 

this or do we go with these two proposals? 

Mr. Szewczyk: I thought we were doing both. 

Mr. Sabol :  Their duty is to protect this place from 9:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. Is that 

correct? 

Ms. Stephens: Yes. 

Mr. Szewczyk: When we had that police officer here, he plainly stated that there was no 

way staff can take care of and look after everything that needed to be looked at. 

Mr. Sabol: Do we need additional staff? 

Ms. Stephens: We were supposed to have cameras. 

Mr. Sabol: We were supposed to have a guard. 

Mr. Szewczyk: The guard is for the nighttime. 

Mr. Flint: He's only going to be here for three nights. 

Mr. Sabol: That is correct. So, which way do we move? Do you want any proposals to 

hire a guard for so many hours so we get a combination? 

Ms. Stephens: Like Joe said, you are hiring the guard for the night. 

Mr. Sabol: Do you want to try one or the other before we get too far? 

Ms. Koontz: I don't. 

Mr. Sabol: Do you have a lot of money to spend? 

Mr. Szewczyk: I thought that was the direction we wanted to go in, which is having a 

guard for the nighttime and access control so we can see who is coming and going during the 

daytime. 
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Ms. Stephens: I agree. That's what I thought too. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So as a Board we need to decide what our policy is going to be. Is it 

going to be one free card per household? We can set whatever price we want, but Nathan needs 

to know what that freebee is upfront so we know how many cards to order to get an accurate 

price on each of these proposals. 

Ms. Sandy: If we are just passing along the cost of the actual card, we can do that, but if 

we are going to charge a set amount, if that's not necessarily affixed to the price, then we must 

have a rate hearing at the public hearing. So, if we are just passing on the cost, which I think is 

$4.25, then we don't need to have any finalized hearing for that. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So if we want to charge a $10 fee for any extra card, do we need to hold a 

rate hearing? 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. 

Mr. Flint: That can be wrapped into your November hearing and we can include that as 

well. I'm used to seeing a fixed amount, but you can do a range. That way if the price of the 

proximity card goes up, you don't need to have another rate hearing. You can set a range for 

those, but you don't want to use it as a moneymaker. Usually you are not charging $3.80. You 

are charging $10 or some fixed number. Again, you can wrap it into that rate hearing if you 

choose to do that. In the interim, you can probably charge the actual rate until you have the rate 

hearing, but it's probably going to be November with the electrical work and everything else to 

get this installed. 

Mr. Sabol: Do we have to decide which company we want to go with? 

Mr. Szewczyk: Not yet. We are still deciding on how many fobs per household because 

that has to be factored into these proposals. 

Mr. Trates: How many are you looking to purchase? I believe one charged $4.25 and the 

other had a separate charge. 

Ms. Sandy: It was $3.80. 

Ms. Koontz: It should be one per each household. So, its $3.80 from CIA and $4.25 from 

Action Security. 

Mr. Szewczyk: How many households do we have in this development? 

Mr. Trates: 687. 

Mr. Flint: Why don't you just round it off to 700. 
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Mr. Szewczyk: From CIA, we are getting 1 ,800 fobs, which was included in their price. 

Mr. Trates: Correct. 

Mr. Szewczyk: There are plenty available for sale at the center. Action Security's 

proposal didn't include it. 

Mr. Trates: They included 300. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We will offer every household one to start off with. So, with Action 

Security, it would be another $2,000 for the cards, which brings their proposal to $15,925. 

Mr. Trates:  Also take into consideration too that the quote for Action Security is for four 

access points and CIA covers two access points. 

Mr. Szewczyk: You didn't get anything in writing. 

Mr. Trates: He gave a generalized proposal. 

Mr. Chichelli: Action Security also offers a manned service. 

Mr. Szewczyk: That's optional. 

Mr. Trates: That is not included. That is an option. 

Mr. Szewczyk: If we went with CIA, we would have to provide the power. So, it looks 

like we have some decent sized numbers here that will need to be added in. We have been doing 

a lot of work with Sargent Electric. 

Mr. Trates: Yes. 

Mr. Szewczyk: So I think we need to find out what kind of lines need to be run and how 

much Sargent would charge us before we can proceed so we can compare apples-to-apples. 

Ms. Koontz: Can we also get in writing from Action Security on what the two access 

points would be? 

Mr. Trates: Yes, I will contact him again. 

Mr. Szewczyk: How does the Board feel? Do we want to include those two things? We 

already have locks and if we just changed the combinations enough times, l don't think we need 

it. 

Ms. Koontz: I thought we were happy with the library having its own secret code. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We are just having access control at the pool, so I think it's important to 

get a price for just those two access points. 

Mr. Trates: Having people in the pool after hours is where most of our issues are. During 

the day, we are checking every hour, sometimes twice an hour for people that come in that are 
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new. So, it really is for after hours. Even if there are key fobs or access fobs, people are still 

going to jump over the fence. 

Mr. Szewczyk: That's why we are saying we need both. I know that you are out there 

checking, but I also see someone leave every once in a while. 

Mr. Sabol: I've seen that several times. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Could you get those missing pieces of information? 

Mr. Trates: We need to consider how guests would get access because a lot of our 

residents have guests. 

Mr. Flint: Guests have to be with the resident. That's the way you handle that. I don't 

think you want to issue proximity cards to guests. 

Mr. Szewczyk: The resident would still have to be here to let them in anyway so I don' t  

think we should even issue temporary passes. I don't think we can move on this without further 

information, especially to get power to the gate. 

C. Consideration of Proposal for Website ADA Compliance 

Mr. Flint: We discussed this before and I asked the Board if I could just bring it back to 

you. This has been the subject of a number of lawsuits in the State of Florida against Special 

Districts, Cities, Counties, School Boards and private entities. As a result, the District's insurer, 

who insurers over 300 CDDs, has indicated that the District needs to take proactive steps to bring 

their website into compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA). The downside of 

not doing that is they would not underwrite the District if we were sued based on being non

compliant with ADA on the website. First this is something we need to do and second, we have 

some concerns about being covered in the event of a lawsuit if we don't do it. We met with 

several companies that provide this service and were able to negotiate a very favorable 

arrangement with VGlobalTech for website compliance. We use them in all of our Districts. 

There are many District managed by companies that spent many times with their proposer to 

bring their website into compliance. We categorized the websites into small, medium and large. 

What they present to you is the large website level. Its slightly more expensive than the medium 

or small web site. It is because your current website is a little more involved that some of the 

other websites. So, we have what are called compliance websites for Districts, which merely 

have all of the documents that are required by Statute to be on there. It's not real flashy. Let the 
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county consider the small website. Typically, with newer Districts, the less information, the 

simpler the layout. Then there's a medium and large range. Based on the way that the website is 

right now, it falls under that large category. The upfront cost to convert and maintain it for the 

first year is $3,575. Then they provided a proposal for future website maintenance. Our 

recommendation would be to only approve Option 1 and then later on, if need be, we can come 

back with other options, but we don't know if the regulations are going to change. So, our 

recommendation would be to defer action on the future maintenance. We also will likely be in a 

position in the future where we can update it ourselves, just for updates. There is a question of 

future auditing of the website. The insurance company wants to make sure that the website 

continues to be in compliance after its first created. It won't be an issue in the first year if you 

approve this because VGlobalTech is going to handle that. In future years, there likely will be a 

need for periodic audits to the website. There are two different kinds of audits; one is basically a 

software audit where they run the software through different software packages to determine 

whether they are compliant. There is also a human audit where they actually have people 

reviewing your website. Because this website is being created by VGlobalTech, they don't think 

the human audit would be necessary. They would be comfortable with the software audit, but 

again, I don't think we need to deal with that today. 

Ms. Sandy: Just to conform, George, in terms of the insurance company, are they okay if 

we don't commit to doing the audits for this first year? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. We are not going to be changing anything with the website. We are just 

going to be uploading documents, which will be converted to RTFs. 

Ms. Sandy: Would VGlobalTech be converting those? 

Mr. Flint: Yes, for the first year. 

Ms. Sandy: Okay. 

Ms. Koontz: Does your company maintain our website? 

Mr. Flint: No. We maintain most of the websites for Districts we manage. This District 

actually had an existing website in place with a third-party provider. So, we would be 

terminating that website and creating a new website that was ADA compliant. 

Ms. Koontz: Is this in the budget? 

Mr. Flint: It' s not. It would come out of the current year's budget. The District has the 

money to fund it. I don't really think you have an option not to do it. It' s not something that was 
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planned in the budget because this was not something this time last year that was even on our 

radar. 

Ms. Koontz: I understand that. I'm not disagreeing with it, but I don't see a line item for 

website maintenance. So, in the future, will we have to monitor for that. 

Mr. Flint: We do have a line item. 

Ms. Sandy: Under "Information Technology." 

Mr. Flint: Last year we budgeted $2,500. The $2,500 anticipates doing some of the 

quarterly auditing. The cost of converting it would actually come out this year's budget, which 

we haven't included in our current year's projected expenses, but it' s  not going to materially 

affect next year's budget. 

Ms. Sandy: We worked with VGlobalTech in our Districts and drafted a form of 

agreement that we could put into place with each of our Districts. There is an initial upfront cost 

as George said and costs that we may need to incur going forward. So, we need to decide 

whether or not we want to include those quarterly audits in the contract or amend the contract in 

the future. 

Mr. Flint: I would leave it off and then we can add it. My recommendation would be to 

approve Option 1 and then we can add the other option later, as needed or if you want to put 

them as optional services in the contract, you can do that, but we can amend the agreement to 

add to it later. 

Ms. Koontz: Are you looking for a motion? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. My recommendation would be a motion to approve Option 1 ,  directing 

District Counsel to draft the appropriate agreement to be executed by the Chair or Vice Chair. 

On MOTION by Ms. Koontz seconded by Mr. Szewczyk with all 
in favor the VGlobalTech Proposal for ADA Website Compliance 
Services in a one-time amount of $3,775 and authorization for 
District Counsel to draft the appropriate agreement to be executed 
by the Chair or Vice Chair was approved. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS New Business Items 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2019-03 Amending Resolution 2019-02 
Approving a Proposed Budget 
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Mr. Flint: This item is informational. Resolution 2019-03 Amends Resolution 2019-02. It 

was technically approved previously. When you initially approved the Proposed Budget, you did 

not propose an increase and the following month, we discussed the budget again. The Board 

decided to include a proposed increase of $50. By doing that, you actually approved this 

resolution, which was drafted by District Counsel. Because you are approving a proposed 

increase, the resolution was slightly modified from what you adopted in May. So, this is 

informational. We will have it executed by the Chairman. It was technically approved at the prior 

meeting. Are there any questions? 

Mr. Sabol: No. 

B. Public Hearing 

Mr. Flint: Next, we have the public hearing to adopt the Fiscal Year 2020 budget. I would 

ask for a motion to open the public hearing. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Stephens with all 
in favor the Public Hearing on the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020 
budget was opened. 

Mr. Flint: The Board previously approved a Proposed Budget, which was subsequently 

amended and setting the date, place and time for the public hearing for today. The Proposed 

Budget included a proposed increase of $50 per unit for a single-family home and a scale for the 

multi-family villas and commercial. The bottom of Page 2 shows the Fiscal Year 2018, 2019 and 

proposed 2020 per unit amounts. The difference for multi-family, which only applies to the 

townhomes would be a proposed increase of $34 per year, from $732 to $766. Then you have the 

single-family homes, which would receive a proposed increase of $50. Then the villas, which 

covers everything else, would have a proposed increase of $40 per year. This is a public hearing 

so you should take public comment before you consider any action. I would be happy to walk 

through the budget if you would like for me to do that. 

Ms. Sandy: That increase is largely to accommodate the additional amount for security 

patrol, especially due to fact that we are looking at an increase. We are holding two public 

hearings. The frrst one will focus specifically on the budget and the second one would focus 
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specifically on the assessments and how they are collected. At this time, if you have any 

questions on the budget, now would be the time to ask them. 

i. Consideration of Resolution 2019-04 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 
Budget and Relating to the Annual Appropriations 

Mr. Flint: We opened the public hearing on Resolution 2019-04, which adopts the 

budget. We provided the Proposed Budget to you, which has not changed substantially. We 

updated the actuals through July 31st for the current year, which impacts the current year 

projections. As far as expenses and revenue for next year, it is substantially the same as what you 

have seen previously. One thing that I will point out, which is on your agenda, is landscape 

inspection services with PSA. They are proposing a slight increase, which results in a $120 per 

year increase from $3,300 to $3,420. The current inspection amount increased slightly, resulting 

in a $120 increase. Per your direction, we included $30,274 for Security Patrol. We balanced the 

budget against that $50 security line item. We still have Transfer Out of $130,000 to the Capital 

Reserve Fund. Are there any questions on the expenses? 

Ms. Koontz: When do we review the contracts that we have for all of our services such as 

your company, the District Engineer's company and the lake maintenance company? The 

contracts you sent to me when I initially got on the Board, all automatically renew and they were 

all signed in 2013. Is there a point where we decided that maybe we should evaluate the 

engineering company and perhaps seek bids from other engineering companies who are less 

expensive or more qualified? All of these contracts automatically renew every year. 

Mr. Flint: Basically in our contract, there is a 60-day termination provision. Otherwise it 

renews. The Board is welcome at any time to review my contract, District Counsel's contract, the 

District Engineer's contract and Vesta's contract, but it's really a Board decision. Typically, the 

way that they are structured in all of the District's we manage, they are set up the same way as 

they are set up here. You don't typically see that review like you might see a landscape contract, 

lake maintenance contract, janitorial contract or pool cleaning contract. Normally you would see 

that in a situation where maybe you're not happy with the service, then that will maybe start the 

process of looking at alternatives to the service, but that's the Board's discussion at any time 

they want to do that. If they are not happy with the service and they feel that they want to review 

it from an economic standpoint, that's your discretion to do that. We work at the will of the 
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Board. District Counsel works at the will of the Board. The District Engineer falls under a 

different section of the Florida Statutes that requires us to do a bidding process for engineering, 

but you are not required to bid out District Counsel and District Manager services. That's at the 

discretion of the Board. 

Ms. Koontz: I would like to express my discontent with the engineering company and 

perhaps some time this year, we should look at other engineering firms. I'm just putting it out 

there. 

Mr. Sabol: So what do we do in that case? Should we advertise it? 

Ms. Sandy: As George was saying, you have to go through a Request for Qualifications 

(RFQ). So, the Board would approve certain advertisements requesting certain qualifications 

from engineering firms. You have to run a notice. Then we would receive those qualifications 

and proposals from various engineering firms. It does not include price in those qualifications. 

You evaluate their qualifications and their licensing. Then the Board would direct staff to 

negotiate a contract with the number one ranked firm. If you can't reach a reasonable contract 

including price, then we would terminate negotiations and try to negotiate a contract with the 

next ranked firm. 

Ms. Koontz: They are going to make us follow a point system. 

Ms. Sandy: Not a point system, but you have to go through the procurement process for 

engineering services. As George said, for professional services such as District Manager and 

District Counsel, you do not have to do that. For your general maintenance contracts, whether 

that is landscaping or lake maintenance, if you reach a certain threshold, then you have to do a 

procurement, but I think for most of these, we are under that procurement process. 

Mr. Flint: Its $200,000. 

Ms. Stephens: George, how many years have we had this District Engineer? 

Mr. Flint: I have to go back and look. When I came on, we had a different one and we 

ended up issuing an RFQ and ended up selecting Johnson Engineering. What is the date of the 

contract? 

Ms. Koontz: October 7, 2014. 

Mr. Flint: So it's been about five years. 

Mr. Sabol: Do we have an option to ask for bids anytime we choose to? 
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Mr. Flint: Yes. Johnson Engineering can bid. The bid document that we typically use is 

very simple. It's a one page notice that we place in the newspaper. It's not a detailed process. If 

you chose to do that, likely what we would want to do is to bring that back, have it on the 

agenda, the Board would authorize staff to issue the RFQ, we would advertise it and bring 

proposals back. 

Ms. Sandy: One thing that I would say in having done a few RFQs recently, is from what 

I've seen from Johnson Engineering rate sheet is that their rates aren't extremely different than 

other engineering firms. Of course, that can vary based on region, but you need to think about 

whether its pricing that you are not happy with or service, personnel and things like that. 

Mr. Flint: You are making the selection of the qualifications and then you negotiate price. 

You are not even allowed to ask what their hourly rates are when you bid it out because its solely 

based on qualifications. I can tell you that in this area, there aren't a lot of options for CDD 

Engineers. If we went out for bids, I'm not sure how many responses we will get. That doesn't 

mean you shouldn't try. On the other hand, if there are specific performance concerns or other 

issues, we can try to deal with those and keep Johnson Engineering. 

Ms. Koontz: Do you want to delay this until Supervisors Comments? We can certainly 

get back to the budget and then discuss this at the end of the meeting. 

Mr. Flint: Okay. Is there any other Board discussion before we take public comments? 

Mr. Sabol: I have none. 

Mr. Flint: If there is no Board discussion, do you want to take public comments? 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. 

Mr. Flint: Is there any public comment? Please state your name and address and try to 

limit your comments to three minutes. 

Deborah Johnson, 1505 Scarlett Avenue: When you were talking about the single-family 

homes being $1,084, I have my tax bill and its $1,544. I just wonder what the other $410 

represents. 

Mr. Flint: There's a debt service assessment, which is $420. There are two components to 

your CDD assessment. There is the operation and maintenance (O&M) and then there's a debt 

service piece. So, for the single-family homes, the debt service is $410. 

Ms. Johnson: Okay. I work in real estate. 

29 



August 21, 2019 Lakeside Plantation CDD 

Mr. Flint: They combine it into one line item on your tax bill, but there are actually two 

different assessments; the debt, which doesn't change from year to year, which is $410 and the 

balance is the O&M assessment, which is what the Board is talking about right now. Its paid off 

in 2031 ,  or you could prepay it early. If you chose to do that, the $410  will drop off. 

Ms. Johnson: Okay. The other thing was this year you said that it was being raised 

because of a security issues. Is that the main reason? 

Mr. Flint: That was the primary reason. 

Ms. Johnson: Do you know why it was raised last year from $50? 

Mr. Flint: It wasn't raised last year. 

Ms. Johnson: Yes it was. I've lived here for 10 years. The last four years it remained the 

same. Then in 2013  and 2014, it was raised to $50 and for the next five years, it remained the 

same. In 201 8  and 2019, it was raised by $50 and now you want to do it again. 

Mr. Flint: It's been the same. In 201 8; it was $ 1 ,084 and in 201 9  it was $1 ,084. 

Ms. Johnson: Not on my tax bill. I looked through every tax bill for the last 10 years and 

it was raised last year. 

Ms. Sandy: If you want to talk to us outside of the meeting, we can look at that with you. 

Ms. Johnson: According to my tax bill, it was raised. 

Mr. Flint: It was raised a couple of years ago, but it's been flat for at least two years. 

Ms. Johnson: Are we talking about anything else other than what we talked about so far? 

Mr. Flint: It's a public hearing on the budget so if you have any questions on the budget, 

you can ask them. 

Ms. Johnson: It's not about the budget. 

Mr. Szewczyk: If it's not about the budget, then you can speak during general comments 

at the end of the meeting. 

Ms. Johnson: Does Personnel Services (Management Contract) include all of the people 

that work here? 

Mr. Flint: That's the Vesta contract. 

Ms. Johnson: What is our Reserve right now? 

Mr. Flint: We have an Operating Reserve in the General Fund of approximately three 

months. 

Ms. Johnson: What is Carry Forward Surplus? 
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Mr. Flint: Every year we transfer money out to a Capital Reserve Fund, which you will 

find on Page 9. Next year we are projecting to have $454,000 in the Reserve Fund. 

Ms. Johnson: Under Carry Forward Surplus, the projected for 9/30 was $396,257 and for 

2020, it was $324,8 10. Why did it decrease? Did we spend $71,000? 

Mr. Flint: For the revenue in the Capital Reserve Fund, we transferred $105,000 from the 

current year and had Interest Earnings of $7,449. We started the year with $396,000. So that total 

is $508,000. Then we are projecting this year to spend $1 84,000, which includes the lake bank 

restoration. The lake bank work hasn't been· done yet, but we are projecting about $184,000 in 

expenses, which leaves us at the end of the current year with $324,000, which carries forward to 

next year. 

Ms. Johnson: My only other question is about the bond that we took out for 1 999. Can 

you ever re-negotiate because its 6.95%, which is really high. Is there any way you can re

negotiate or do you have to stay with the original one for 30 years? 

Mr. Flint: No, it can be refinanced. We had an Underwriter look at it. The issue that we 

have, unfortunately, is that we had a default on the townhome projects. The townhome section 

was actually foreclosed on and the debt was wiped out so there's a default history with the 

current bond, which you can overcome after a while. However, the undeveloped commercial at 

the front of the development is actually creating an issue with the refinancing because of the 

percentage it represents of our annual revenue. So, we had an Underwriter look at it a couple of 

different times. The last time they looked at it, they didn't believe that the savings were 

significant enough to go through the refinancing. I can tell you that rates are very favorable right 

now and it wouldn't hurt for us to have them look at it again because those savings could be 

more significant than they were based on the lower interest rates. The commercial still poses an 

issue because there are significant unpaid taxes on those lots. Then you have the default history. 

Those all combined caused an issue in the past when we looked at it, but of course we can look 

at it again. 

Ms. Johnson: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Flint: Are there any other public comments on the budget? Hearing none, we will 

bring it back to the Board. Is there any other discussion? If not we need a motion to adopt 

Resolution 2019-04. 
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Ms. Sandy: Just to clarify, we will have to fill in the blanks in Section 2 of the resolution 

with the amounts that are in the budget that was included in your agenda package. 

Mr. Flint: We leave it blank in case you make any changes. 

Ms. Sandy: In general, that resolution adopts the budget as shown, appropriates those 

funds to the various funds that we show throughout the budget and discusses how the budget can 

be amended throughout the year. 

budget. 

On MOTION by Mr. Sabol seconded by Ms. Stephens with all in 
favor Resolution 2019-04 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget 
and Relating to the Annual Appropriations, was approved. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Stephens with all 
in favor the Public Hearing on the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020 
budget was closed. 

ii. Consideration of Resolution 2019-05 Imposing Special Assessments 

and Certifying an Assessment Roll 

Ms. Sandy: We need a motion to open the public hearing to adopt the Fiscal Year 2020 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Stephens with all 
in favor the public hearing on the imposition of special 
assessments was opened. 

Mr. Flint: As Sarah indicated, this resolution imposes the assessments associated with the 

budget you just adopted. There are two exhibits; Exhibit A is the budget that you just approved 

and Exhibit B is the Assessment Roll, which lists all properties within the District and the 

assessment associated with one of those. If there is any discussion from the Board, we can have 

that now. If not, I can open the floor to any public comment on the assessment resolution. 

Hearing no Board discussion, are there any public comments on the assessment resolution? 

Hearing none, we will bring it back to the Board for consideration of the resolution. 

Ms. Sandy: This resolution levies the O&M assessments that will fund the budget that 

you just adopted. It also provides for the methods of collection of those assessments as well as 
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certifies for collection the next year's installment of debt assessment. As you can see, primarily 

those assessments are collected on the tax roll. Some is directly collected. 

Mr. Flint: Like Imagine Schools. 

Ms. Sandy: Yes, the charter school. Those are the main items that are provided for in this 

resolution. 

Ms. Koontz: The numbers that you are talking about on Page 2 are for the commercial 

lot, family and single-family? 

Mr. Flint: Correct. 

Ms. Sandy: Those are for the O&M assessment and how much they will be increasing. 

As George said, the debt assessment will be certified for collection. 

Mr. Flint: The debt assessments are in here as well. I have the assessment roll, which is 

also an attachment. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Stephens with all 
in favor Resolution 2019-05 Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll, was approved. 

Mr. Flint: We need a motion to close the public hearing. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Stephens with all 
in favor the public hearing on the imposition of special 
assessments was closed. 

C. Consideration of Agreement with PSA Horticultural for Landscape 

Inspection Services 

Mr. Flint: There was an increase per inspection. There are six inspections per year. It 

increased by $20 per inspection from $550 to $570, resulting in an annual cost of $3,420. 

Ms. Sandy: If the Board wishes, we can draft a contract for this. In the past, we relied on 

the proposal. There is some information that we would need to remove. I think they provide 

some proposals to help with an RFP for landscaping, which we don't need. I've already provided 

comments to George's office so we can provide those to PSA. I hope to get those incorporated 

and use this general proposal as the contract. 

Ms. Koontz: I would like to go on record that this is a waste of money. 
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Mr. Flint: Is there any other Board discussion? 

Mr. Szewczyk: I've always been the one to ask what are we paying them for because I 

think we just received a report from them. The previous one was the first time that I've seen 

them fail an inspection since the second one they ever did. However, someone in the audience 

brought up a good point, which is if we don't have them doing the inspection, keeping the 

landscaper in line as far as the quality of their work, then who is going to oversee them? That's 

just a general question. Do we need somebody to make sure that Bloomings is doing their job? 

Mr. Sabol: Was it $3,000 or $3, 100? 

Mr. Flint: It is $3,420. 

Mr. Sabol: Lots of times, Vesta goes ground and Brad goes around and looks at things in 

case we don't need them. It's not compulsory. 

Mr. Flint: I asked Vesta if they would provide the services and I believe you declined. 

Typically, when we provide that type of service, it's  not our base management contract. We have 

a field services portion of our contract to manage the lake and landscape maintenance. It's going 

to be well in excess of what Tom Pachano is doing here. So, I don't know within your current 

budget, if you can accommodate that. I'll have a good alternative for you as far as us providing 

it, unless we provide a proposal, but it's going to be expensive, like $3,040. 

Mr. Sabol: Is there no other organization that you know of that would do the same job? 

Mr. Flint: Not at this price. I work with another company called, "Sunscape Consulting" 

and it's a lot more than this. 

Ms. Stephens: We have this contract. Do we think that Bloomings is still not doing a 

good job? We are looking at what PSA is saying, but we are walking around saying, "This still 

doesn't look good." So, are they worth their money? I know it's probably not coming out right, 

but are they holding them accountable? 

Mr. Szewczyk: Two inspections ago, they failed the inspection so we withheld their 

money until things were rectified to PSA's satisfaction. 

Mr. Flint: Right. They did another inspection last week, but we haven't received that 

report yet. 

Mr. Szewczyk: That's not the one we just received with a score of 30? 

Ms. Sandy: One came out this week. 

Mr. Flint: That was for last week. It was the inspection before that, that they missed. 
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Ms. Sandy: Do we have a delegated l3oard member that works with either Bloomings or 

PSA as the landscaper? 

Mr. Sabol: I don't think we do. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We used to have a liaison between the landscaper and the Board. At 

times, it wasn't even a Board Member. It was a resident. I don't know if that's a route we want to 

go m. 

Mr. Sabol: I think we need some type of inspection because Bloomings has worked here 

for quite some time, but I have seen things that they have not done, which they should have 

done. 

Ms. Stephens: I hate to cut you off, but he's right. I think Bloomings has gotten too 

comfortable because they handle the landscaping for the CDD and the HOA. 

Mr. Szewczyk: For the single-family. 

Ms. Stephens: Yes, single family. I think at this point, they are just too comfortable with 

what they are doing. 

Mr. Sabol: I would like to see an inspector come in with shark teeth and say, "Hey, you 

are not doing this and you're not doing that." 

Ms. Stephens: What bothers me is with the single-family, they park their equipment on 

the grass and its burning the grass. I don't know. It's a lot of money. 

Ms. Sandy: In terms of options, you either can revisit your landscape contract, but in 

terms of monitoring, as George was saying, you can continue with a contract like this, which is 

certainly a much lower rate or engage a firm that is going to be a much higher rate, but more 

involved. The only third option I am seeing is where a Board Member gets more involved as a 

liaison. I can't think of any other options. 

Mr. Flint: I think that's the option. Ideally, your Amenity Manager would be able to do 

that because they are onsite, but I think there should be a scope change and a cost to that. They 

indicated that they weren't comfortable providing it. We can provide a proposal for field 

management services and as Sarah indicated, I think you tried to move away from the model of 

Board Members being involved as liaisons to different areas, but that is how some Districts 

choose to operate. You have one Board Member over one item and one Board Member over 

another item. I think you tried to migrate away from that to a certain extent and allow staff to 

manage it, but this contract is not one that can easily be managed from a distance. 
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Mr. Sabol: I don't think any Board Member should be compelled to do their job. Did you 

want to volunteer? 

Ms. Stephens: I have no problem volunteering if I know when they are coming, but I'm 

picky. I want things cleaned and picked up. 

Mr. Sabol :  Yes, but Bloomings is in here every other day. Do you want to follow them 

around every other day? 

Ms. Stephens: No. 

Mr. Sabol: No. 

Mr. Flint: You wouldn't do it every day. You would set up periodic meetings with them 

to do a drive through and punch list. You would follow up on your next drive through to make 

sure they did what you pointed out the last time. So, it wouldn't be a daily thing. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Wouldn't that affect our current contract with Bloomings? 

Mr. Flint: Yes, in a way. I don't think we would follow the scoring system portion of 

their contract. It would eliminate your ability to penalize them financially if they didn't receive a 

certain score. This is the only District that I have that has that arrangement. Most of them either 

perform or not perform. If you are not performing than you make a change. They all have 30 

days out provisions. You can penalize them financially and see if they improve. If they don't, 

you can terminate them and move on. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We went that route multiple times over the last few years and putting 

things out for bid or just starting that process of whatever their number is. We are looking for 

something larger. 

Mr. Flint: I think we received a good deal with the current contractor every time we bid it 

out. We have been in danger of costing ourselves more. It's really a choice of whether you are 

comfortable with Bloomings. Do we believe we can work with them or bid it out with the 

potential of possibly increasing it? It might give them an opportunity for them to readjust their 

contract also. 

Mr. Sabol: We have an option of bidding it out ifwe would like to. 

Mr. Szewczyk: The question here is the PSA contract. Can we do without it and what are 

we going to do ifwe don't have them? 

Ms. Stephens: I think we should keep them because at least they are helping Bloomings 

and Bloomings knows that PSA is watching what they are doing. 
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Mr. Szewczyk: That they are being held accountable. 

Mr. Sabol: Can you give PSA a little tap on the back and say, "Be a little more 

stringent? " 

Mr. Flint: Yes. I've talked with Tom a couple of times and I think he understands where 

we are coming from and what the concerns are, but it' s  the Board's call. I don' t  know if the 

termination provision is in here. 

Ms. Sandy: We included a 30-day termination. 

Mr. Flint: You can always approve it and then three months from now, terminate it. You 

are not locked into this for a year just because you voted for it today. 

Mr. Szewczyk: What happens if we don't do anything today? 

Mr. Flint: We could either continue under the existing terms or terminate the service. 

Whatever you all want to do? 

Mr. Szewczyk: Well, if we have a viable option, that's fine, but if we don't, then the only 

viable option I think, based on everyone else saying that its cost prohibitive for them to do it, is 

for one of us to take over as the point person and keep Bloomings. Is anyone willing to do that? 

Ms. Stephens: I don't know. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Either someone is willing to do it and we accept and sign the contract. If 

we get to the point where it's not working out, we get rid of them. 

Mr. Sabol: I think it's too much to ask one person to follow them around. I think we can 

just accept it and move on. 

Ms. Stephens: I think we should accept it. 

Mr. Sabol: Unless someone else wants to follow them around. 

Ms. Koontz: Are you looking at me? I don't think that we need to monitor Bloomings at a 

cost of $3,420. I just think it' s a waste of money. We have 600 plus homes, which is 1,200 plus 

eyes. We know when they are doing a good job and when they are not. This most recent report 

that he submitted contained everything that Bloomings told him they did. They fertilized. They 

weeded. One of his comments was there's not enough flowers on Scarlett Avenue. That's not 

worth $3,420 if you ask me. I just think we are throwing money away. We can use this money 

for security. Do you want a liaison with Bloomings? I 'll volunteer. 

Ms. Stephens: When they say they fertilize; how do you know they are fertilizing? You 

don't actually know what they are doing. That's my thought. I have no problem volunteering. 
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First of all, I 'm not an expert on landscaping. So, when they are here, are you going to be here 

and follow them and say, "What are we doing today?" 

Mr. Szewczyk: No. I think it's just a matter of doing the general inspection and saying, 

"Does it look good or not?" If it's not, we say to Bloomings, "What are you going to do to fix 

it?" 

Ms. Stephens: Okay, so now when you are coming up Plantation Boulevard before you 

come through the intersection, that always looks disgusting. It always looks like it needs to be 

cleaned out. 

Mr. Szewczyk: On the other side of the sidewalk? 

Ms. Stephens: Yes. If it were me, I'd say, "Excuse me, let's clean this up." 

Ms. Koontz: Why do you say that? It's a lot cheaper than $3,410. Why don't we say, 

"Bloomings, pick this up?" We have the expectation that they will clean this up. 

Mr. Sabol: Would you like to do that? 

Mr. Flint: She said she would be the liaison. 

Mr. Sabol: We have to come to a deciBion. 

Ms. Sandy: As George pointed out, the only downside of going with a Board liaison 

versus the PSA contract, is that the point system is currently built into Bloomings contract where 

we can withhold payments if they don't meet that point system, which we wouldn't be able to do 

without a Board liaison. You still have to give a 30 day out. 

Ms. Koontz: Why don't we have a point system to withdraw money? If they aren't doing 

the job, we don't pay them. Why do we need the point system to justify that we are paying them 

because they didn't do the job? 

Ms. Sandy: With the point system, it' s  a little more particular and you are able to pinpoint 

more of what they are not doing in terms of smaller items versus withholding the full monthly 

amounts. If you do that, you are going to have to find substantive items that you are going to 

determine breach the contract and terminate. 

Mr. Flint: The reality of it is if it gets to the point where you feel like you have to 

withhold, then you are better off terminating.• 

Ms. Koontz: Let's do that. 
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Mr. Flint: It's up to the Board. If you have a Board Member who volunteered to be a 

liaison, you could terminate the existing agreement with PSA and we can go under that model. 

You can always switch back later if you wanted. I think you have flexibility to do that. 

Ms. Sandy: I guess one additional item is if a liaison could work with PSA, that would be 

an option. I haven't spoken specifically with PSA on that. 

Mr. Flint: I think the concern is the cqst. 

Ms. Chichelli: I think we have to risk re-doing the contract with Bloomings, right? They 

could increase it. 

Ms. Sandy: I would have to specifically look at that. We have a specific section that deals 

with PSA doing inspections and the point system so we would have to look at it and see if we 

can continue under the current contract without re-doing the contract. 

Ms. Chichelli: Without increasing it. 

Ms. Sandy: Correct. 

Mr. Szewczyk: It sounds like you better find out what happens to the contract before we 

let PSA go. 

Ms. Sandy: Yes. I can look at that. I wouldn't think that Bloomings is going to complain 

about not having an inspection or their payment being withheld based on a point system. The 

primary purpose of having that in there is to let them know that they won't be paid until this 

inspection comes out, so if the Board is willing to waive that section, I wouldn't think that they 

would have a problem with that. 

Mr. Flint: I'm sure they are fine with that. I wouldn't defer action on that issue. If you're 

ready to make a decision, I would do it. 

Ms. Koontz: Is the point system included in Bloomings contract? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Yes. That's what they are saying. Most likely that provision is going to be 

dropped and they are not going to complain about it. 

Ms. Koontz: I see. 

Ms. Sandy: It primarily goes to when they get paid and how they get paid. 
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On MOTION by Mr. Sabol seconded by Ms. Koontz with Ms. 
Chichelli, Mr. Szewczyk, Ms. Koontz and Mr. Sabol in favor and 
Ms. Stephens dissenting, giving PSA Horticultural a 30-day notice 
of termination, was approved. (Motion Passed 4- 1) 

Mr. Flint: So the approach going forward is that Ms. Koontz would serve as liaison to the 

landscape contractor. 

Ms. Stephens Let's decide what we specifically expect. That's my concern. 

Mr. Sabol: That opens a whole new can of worms. 

Ms. Stephens: That's what I 'm saying. Regardless of whether it' s  you, Joe, Pina, myself 

and Bud, what are you looking for? Is that like coming to Joe's house and saying, "You trim this 

bush good?" Do you know what I 'm saying because this is the entire community? 

Ms. Koontz: I'm looking to hold Bloomings accountable. We'll start there. 

Mr. Flint: It's  a matter of looking at the contract and seeing how many times a year they 

are supposed to mow. How many times are they supposed to fertilize? How many times are they 

supposed to do pest control? How many times they are supposed to install annuals? How many 

times they are supposed to trim the trees? Then when they do all of those things, are they doing it 

adequately? I would think periodic meetings once every week or every two weeks is adequate. 

We do a drive through every week of the entire community to address any issues such as weeds 

or wilting annuals. I noticed that coming in. Things like that could be pointed out. 

Ms. Koontz: Okay. 

D. Consideration of Agreement with DART Pool Solutions for Pool and Spa 

Cleaning Services 

This item will be added to the next agenda. 

E. Acceptance of Audit Committee Recommendation and Selection of #1 

Ranked Firm to Provide Auditing Services for Fiscal Year 2019 

Mr. Flint: The Board met as an Audit-Committee prior to this meeting and ranked Berger, 

Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank as the number one ranked auditing firm. We need a motion to 

accept the Audit Committee's recommendation. 
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On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Stephens with all 
in favor approving the ranking of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & 
Frank as the number one ranked firm for auditing services, was 
approved. 

F. Approval of Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule 

Mr. Flint: The Board each year is required to approve an annual meeting schedule. We 

prepared a notice that follows your existing meeting schedule. You can choose to approve it or 

change the dates, times, locations and frequency. 

Ms. Stephens: I called George to ask_ if we really need to meet 12  times each year. Can 

we cut that down to eight? We didn't meet in July and everything was fine. We also didn't meet 

in December. If God forbid there was something that needed to be addressed, we can have an 

emergency meeting. 

Mr. Szewczyk: It' s a matter of posting. We can always not meet on those dates. Right? 

Ms. Sandy: Correct. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We must have public notice that these are the scheduled dates. 

Ms. Sandy: Correct. If you don't have it that month, then you would have to do a meeting 

notice seven days out if you did want to meet that month. A lot of Districts meet every other 

month, with a few additional meetings during the budget season. 

Ms. Stephens: I just don't think we need to meet 12 times every year. That's just my 

opinion. I just think its overkill. I'm just saying that maybe we can eliminate two months that 

George thinks it would be okay and if God forbid something came up, then we would send out a 

notice. It' s  a cost savings with the lawyer aI).d District Engineer, whoever that may be. So, you 

will be saving money. 

Ms. Sandy: We already have the July and December meetings on the schedule. We 

currently have 12 meetings on there. 

Mr. Flint: We have historically put them on here and then cancelled them, but you had 

the option. It's up to the Board if you want to try to reduce it or keep it the same. You technically 

have 12 meetings. I have some Districts that meet four times a year and some that meet 24 times 

a year. I think in this District, having 10  meetings worked. Again, if you do something less than 

10 and we have to meet, it's a seven-day notice. It's not a big deal. 

Mr. Sabol: lfwe omit too many meetings, we will omit two-and-a-half hours. 
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Mr. Szewczyk: I'm okay with keeping the schedule as is. 

Mr. Sabol: I am also. 

Lakeside Plantation CDD 

Ms. Koontz: I am too. I think it's a matter of making ourselves available to the residents. 

Ms. Stephens: What do they do in July and December? 

Mr. Sabol: Take those two out and we will have 10 meetings. 

Ms. Stephens: That's what we have now anyway. What I'm saying is that I just don't 

think we need to have 10 meetings. That's just my opinion. I'm not going to argue with you. It's 

just my opinion. Four people say yes and I say no. 

Mr. Flint: Then we need a motion regarding the meeting schedule. Are you approving it 

as presented or do you want me to take December and July off of the schedule? 

Ms. Koontz: Keep it the way it is. 

On MOTION by Ms. Koontz seconded by Ms. Chichelli with Mr. 
Szewczyk, Mr. Sabol, Ms. Chichelli and Ms. Koontz in favor and 
Ms. Stephens dissenting, approving the Fiscal Year 2020 meeting 
schedule as presented, was approved. (Motion Passed 4-1) 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Administration 

A. Approval of Minutes of June 10, 2019 Meeting 

Mr. Flint: Did any other Board Members have any comments or corrections to the 

minutes? 

Mr. Szewczyk: I didn't have any comments. 

Mr. Sabol: I had none. 

Ms. Stephens: I didn't have any. 

Mr. Flint: Are there any comments or corrections? 

Ms. Chichelli: I gave you one. 

Mr. Flint: I have one change from Ms. Chichelli on Page 25 to clarify a statement that she 

made. Are there any other comments? If not, we need a motion to approve the minutes as 

amended. 

On MOTION by Ms. Stephens seconded by Mr. Szewczyk with all 
in favor the minutes of the June 19, 2019 meeting as amended 
were approved. 
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B. Approval of Check Registers 

Mr. Flint: We provided you with the unaudited financial statements from June 1 to June 

30, 2019 and from July 1 to July 31, 2019. Are there any questions on the Summary of Invoices? 

Mr. Sabol: No. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I had a question. Was the Earth Balance invoice for $13,000 for preserve 

maintenance? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. It was for the preserve maintenance that you approved. 

Mr. Szewczyk: It looks like one of the water bills for the current month was $140,129 

versus $498,000 from the prior month. I bet it was for the fountains. 

Mr. Trates: It was for the exit fountain where a leak was detected and repaired. 

Mr. Szewczyk: That's all I had. 

Mr. Flint: Are there any other questions? 

Mr. Sabol: No. 

On MOTION by Ms. Stephens seconded by Mr. Szewczyk with all 
in favor the June and July Check Registers were approved. 

C. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

Mr. Flint: You also have the combined Balance Sheet and Statements of Revenue and 

Expenditures through July 31, 2019. No action is required by the Board, but if you have any 

questions we can discuss those. We are still about $10,000 under our on-roll assessment 

collections. Likely, that's probably the result of the commercial properties out front. Historically, 

we have come in close to 100% so I don't believe that will be any different this year, but we are 

slightly under collected. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS General Audience Comments 

Mr. Flint: Are there any members of the public that would like to provide comments to 

the Board? If so, please state your name and address and try to keep your comments to three 

minutes. 

James Carr, 2225 Boxwood Street: I was a little surprised about the vote on Bloomings. 

I've been here for nine years. I went four or five years with doing a lot of my own lawn work and 

discovered that Bloomings was supposed to do some of it. I got a hold of them and was told that 
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I had requested they not do it. More recently, I just returned from up north and my lawn was dug 

up. My next door neighbor mentioned to me that she saw Bloomings scalping my lawn. I haven't 

been that happy on a total basis with Bloomings. You told me that using PSA would provide 

some leverage. I'm not sure how this is going to work. By the way, I turned in a request to 

Bloomings to fix what was done. My past experience doesn't make me very optimistic. We have 

a problem ifwe can't get something done so who do I go to? Do I go to Rena? 

Mr. Flint: Are you talking about the lawn around your house? 

Mr. Carr: Yes. 

Mr. Flint: The HOA handles that. Bloomings contracts with the CDD for common area 

maintenance. We don't have anything to do with individual homes and the maintenance around 

your home. That is the HOA. They have a contract with Bloomings for that as well. It has 

nothing to do with your house. It's the common area along Plantation Boulevard, around the 

ponds and around the clubhouse. 

Mr. Carr: Thank you. 

Hugh Moore, 1921 Scarlett Avenue: Good evening everybody. I heard Bloomings 

mentioned tonight a number of times. I live in the carriage homes. My issue has to do with 

Bloomings. This has been going on for several years now and over time, I noticed that 

Bloomings was not cutting. At the carriage homes, basically along my area of Scarlett A venue, 

our property lines only go so far. It does not go to the preserve area. That area varies of course 

depending on the line of demarcation and how it varies for the preserves. So Bloomings over the 

years has failed to cut up to the line of the preserve and over three or four years, the preserve has 

continued to creep into that particular area. I have some pictures. It is to the point where now in 

some spots, the preserve has overgrown to 4 to 5 feet into what is not necessarily my yard, but it 

is CDD property. The northwest comer of my home to the preserve is 30 feet now. My concern 

is more than just a quality issue. It has to do with safety. I was coming back home in March or 

April of this year, driving along E. Price Boulevard and I noticed smoke coming from the 

backyard of a home. So, I went to see where the smoke was coming from and sure enough it was 

coming from the backyard of a home that had heavy vegetation. It just about consumed the entire 

yard up to and including a car that was parked in the circular driveway in the backyard. So, my 

concern is during the dry season, certainly not now, it's a hazard. It's a hazard not only to my 

home, but certainly to other homes in that particular area. After watching the CDD mowers buzz 
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by week after week, I finally had enough and sent an email, including pictures to the CDD office 

with a copy to Rena to advise her on what was going on. I heard nothing. Then I sent another 

email after the CDD mowers buzzed through once again. This time I noticed that the person 

operating the mower was on his cell phone. He just went through. So, I went out and took more 

pictures and sent another email to the same recipients. I still didn't hear anything. The day before 

yesterday, they came through once again at the same speed and left the same result. Except that 

rather than at least completing the part that the CDD is responsible for, they stopped halfway. 

Rena did say that there was a thunderstorm that afternoon and they may have just stopped for the 

safety of the operation. However, this past Monday, they did the same thing. They stopped 

halfway to the point of where they should be mowing. I mentioned to Nathan that last Friday 

morning, I noticed when I went to the front room to open the blinds, a green golf cart had driven 

down the sidewalk and stopped at the alleyway that goes to the backyard. I don't know if that 

was a PSA guy or not. I kind of have a suspicion it may have been. He stopped just past my 

home and looked down through there. You can't see anything from there and then they continued 

on. So, I went ahead and sent that third email with additional photos and I received a response 

from Nathan. I did call him and he and I had a conversation about it. Thank you very much, 

Nathan. You listened diligently and I appreciate that. Rena contacted me and I really appreciate 

that too. I've been here since 2006 and I've seen landscapers come and go, but Bloomings over 

time has gotten way too comfortable here. The other thing is that there's no recourse, apparently. 

The other night, I asked Nathan what we can do about it and he sent emails to Bloomings. I don't 

really think that's going to do much good. If we have no recourse and we can't command a 

certain level of service from our service providers, then we need to keep looking. I'm not asking 

the CDD to do anything about the preserves. I understand you really can't. I wish you could. It's 

been cleaned out before, but without banding tightly up against it, it's just going to continue 

growing. Even in the three emails I sent, I invited somebody from Bloomings and/or the CDD to 

come by to show what I'm talking about. I'm hoping to be able to get that done soon. That's my 

story and again, the main thing is that it's an aesthetics issue, but it's also a safety issue at this 

point. Thank you very much. I would like to leave the three emails with the photographs. 

Ms. Stephens: Did you email all of the Board Members because I don't recall receiving 

an email from him? 

Mr. Flint: No. He emailed me and Nathan. It sounds like Rena has her first job. 
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Ms. Koontz: In my new capacity as liaison, I will meet with Mr. Moore tomorrow 

because I know that the Bloomings Supervisor is back. 

Mr. Flint: He was on vacation for a week and a half. We will go over and see Mr. Moore. 

Mr. Moore: Thank you very much. I just don't know what recourse we have. Apparently, 

there are other issues around the community. 

Mr. Sabol : Our problem is the last time it was put out for bids, Bloomings was much 

more reasonable than the other. That's why Bloomings was chosen. I will admit that Bloomings 

sometimes miss things. 

Mr. Flint: Any contract has to be managed. Even the best landscape contractors need to 

be managed. So, we can work on trying to approve that. 

Mr. Moore: Could I submit these for the record? 

Mr. Flint: Yes. 

Cathy Bowman, 1935 Scarlett Avenue: I'm here for the same reason that gentleman is. I 

live two houses from the carriage homes. The house next to me, 193 7 is at the end of the big 

CDD common area and they come and clean. Anytime I have seen a golf cart come down, they 

fly down the back and don't stop to look at anything. My concern is the same as this 

gentleman's. It looks awful, but I can deal with that. There are so many dead palms and dead 

gravel that it's a safety issue. Vivian sent emails back in February, but unfortunately it was a bad 

time. She had personal problems with her family and did respond to me that she would have 

someone look into it. I never heard anything after that. My concern is lightning is going to hit 

and our homes are so close to that part of the preserve, the way it curves around. It should be 

cleaned out. I purchased the home on October 1 7  and moved into the home in December. It 

looked beautiful. I don't know if it had just been cleaned, but it' s not even two years now and the 

weeds are very high. Like he said, its 4 to 5 feet from the preserve into our property lines. There 

is so much dead stuff and so much weeds that the weeds are just choking off the pond. So, all of 

these ponds are dry and dead back there. Like this gentleman, I want to get it under control. 

When I first moved in, I didn't know if the HOA's lawn service or the CDDs. They used to come 

in with a mower with a long attachment, which would go along and take everything out, all the 

way up to the tree line. Like I said, it has been almost two years now and it's not under control. I 

just hope there's not a fire. Thanks for listening. 

Mr. Sabol: Thank you. 
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Mr. Flint: Are there any other audience comments? 

Cathy Anderson, 1850 Scarlett Avenue: I sell real estate so I know about the 

communities. Cypress Falls uses a fob. They get charged $50 for every fob. Every family 

receives two fobs. Any additional fobs could be bought for $50. When the person sells their 

home, they must leave the two fobs. If there's a problem, they have to replace that fob for 

another $50. To get into the pool area, you hit the reader with fob and go through. It's a little bit 

different. They also use it for the bathrooms to make sure that the bathrooms are secure. You use 

the fob to get in and get out, you push the exit button and it pushes the door open. I know the 

Board is talking about access cards, but cards get lost versus the fob, which stays on a key chain 

and goes nowhere. When they have guests, the guest receives a bracelet so when they go to the 

pool, staff signs them in and if they have a bracelet on, they automatically know that they are a 

guest. 

Mr. Flint: Is there any other public comment? Hearing none, 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

A. District Counsel 

Staff Reports 

Mr. Flint: District Counsel do you have anything further. 

Ms. Sandy: The only thing that I have to report as I mentioned earlier, is that we are 

rolling out revised Rules of Procedure based on soII1e statutory changes that happened over five 

or so years since we last updated our Rules of Procedure. So, at the next meeting, we will bring 

forward those revised rules as well as the notices that need to be run in order to advertise the 

public hearing. 

B. District Manager - Action Items 

Mr. Flint: The first three action items are complete. Item 4 is regarding the oak trees. I 

know that there are concerns about the health of some of those, but the issue also came up about 

the trimming of the oak trees. I asked Tom when he was here last week during his inspection to 

look at the oak trees because there was a concern about whether we received what we thought we 

were going to get. They lifted the trees so I guess the question was did they do as much center 

pruning as we were hoping they would do to open the canopy. His comment was he thought the 

center pruning was minimal. Joe Little, the site manager was out of town last week when Tom 
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was here, I asked Tom to get with Joe this week when he gets back into town to talk through it 

and then we will go from there. I made a partial payment and withheld 20% of the payment 

because they hired a subcontractor to do the work and they already paid the subcontractor. I 

didn't feel like it was fair to withhold the entire amount so we released 80% of the payment and 

are withholding 20%. We've had some limited success on trying to get a proposal for the solar 

light. Is there anything else that the Board would like to add to the action items? 

Ms. Chichelli: What are we doing with the solar light? 

Mr. Trates: If no contractor is making a bid, we can't do anything. 

Mr. Flint: We asked several contractors and have not had much luck in getting a 

proposal. We can continue to investigate it. I don't know if we have any options for the Board 

right now. 

Mr. Szewczyk: We still have one, right? 

Mr. Trates: No. 

Mr. Flint: There was one proposal, but the pole was too short. Have you asked Sargent 

Electric? 

Mr. Trates: They don't do lights. 

Mr. Flint: I will follow up on that. 

C. Amenities Manager - Monthly Report 

Mr. Trates: I don't have too much to add, but I know that there was another quote that I 

was going to present from Florida Tier One Security for 24 hours per week security. They 

wanted $23 per hour for 24 hours. The other quote was from Anthony of Relion Solutions for 

$17.50 per hour for 24 hours. As Bud mentioned earlier, I originally had a quote in here from 

Bradley Ray Concrete for the drainage issue at the tennis court, but at the last minute, they pulled 

out. That's all I have for the Board and would be happy to take any other questions. 

Mr. Flint: What do we know about Florida Tier One Security? Do we have any 

background on them? 

Mr. Trates: I checked references. 

Mr. Flint: Were they are $23 an hour? 

Mr. Trates: I believe that they quoted a higher amount, but the Board wanted to see if 

they would lower the price. He dropped the price down a little bit. 
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Mr. Szewczyk: What is price now? 

Mr. Trates: $23 an hour. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Is that the lower price? 

Mr. Trates: Correct. 

Mr. Flint: That's $28,700 a year. 

Mr. Szewczyk: How long have they been in business? 

Lakeside Plantation CDD 

Mr. Trates: I have to double check. I believe its family owned and operated. The person I 

was working with said they have been in business for over 25 years. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Relion is just starting out. 

Mr. Trates: Yes. 

Mr. Szewczyk: But they are also $6 per hour cheaper. I don't know if we are ready to 

discuss this any further in general terms. We are looking for someone to monitor the facility 24 

hours per week. Quite simply, for $17 versus $23, it doesn't take a lot to sit here watching, 

supposedly having the training to take care of it in a customer service type manner. It averaged 

out to just under two incidences per week. 

Mr. Trates: Two to three generally. 

Mr. Szewczyk: My gut tells me that it is probably the same people; two out of those 

three. 

Mr. Trates: It's generally different people. 

Mr. Szewczyk: But over the time, it might be the same people multiple times so once 

they realize someone is here, chances are that's going to be the end of it. What I think the scope 

of the job is, I would lean towards Relion and giving him a chance. We will just see how it goes. 

It will have a limited time and an out clause so we can get something started here. 

Mr. Trates: I could always reach out to Anthony and see what the terms would be and if 

we can do a trial run since he said that you would be the one most likely doing the patrolling 

around here. 

Mr. Szewczyk: I did pick up on that statement and I appreciated that he would be the one 

in charge. At least start him off. 

Mr. Trates: That way, we can try it for three months to see if things get better. 

Ms. Sandy: To your point, we would want to use the District's form of contract with a 

30-day termination. 
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Mr. Trates: Of course. 

Ms. Sandy: He says on the proposal that he is licensed and insured. 

Mr. Flint: Yes, we need insurance. I think we will find out pretty quickly, if it's going to 

work or not. I'm a little uneasy about how small they are and how informal their operation was. 

Ms. Sandy: They have limited experience. 

Ms. Koontz: It's also the only company though that took enough interest in us to come 

here to the meeting and say, "Here I am and what are your questions? " 

Mr. Trates: He was a little nervous standing up here. 

Mr. Flint: You're right and everyone has to start somewhere. 

Mr. Szewczyk: Using our typical District contract with a 30 day out clause, I'd be willing 

to give this guy a try. 

Ms. Stephens: I would too. 

Mr. Sabol: Me too. 

Ms. Koontz: Yes. 

Ms. Sandy: George discussed earlier, potentially delegating to the Chair or a Board 

Member to work with the security firm to set specific hours. 

Mr. Sabol: Jason, would you be willing to do that? 

Mr. Flint: He will probably work with the Chair if the Board's comfortable with that. It's 

just a matter of deciding which nights they are going to be patrolling. We don't want to talk 

about that at an open meeting. 

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk seconded by Ms. Koontz with all 
in favor approving the proposal from Relion Solutions for 
nighttime security , subject to District Counsel drafting the 
standard contract and delegating authority to the Chair and 
Amenity Manager to determine the patrol schedule, was approved. 

Mr. Trates: That's all I have. 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

Mr. Flint: Is there any other business? Hearing none, 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors' Requests 
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Mr. Flint: Are there any Supervisor's Requests? If not, we need a motion to adjourn. 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

On MOTION by Ms. Stephens seconded by Ms. Chichelli with all 
in favor the meeting was adjourned. 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary 
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